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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,

The Members of
AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the Twelveth Annual Report of your Company together with
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. As required under the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs’ General Circular 08/2014 No. 1/19/2013-CL-V dated April 4, 2014, the Financial
Statements and other reports required to be attached to the Annual Report for FY 2022-23 are governed
by the relevant provisions, schedules, rules of the Companies Act, 2013.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

(from 1st Apr. 2022 to | (from 1st Apr. 2021 to

31stMar. 2023) 31stMar. 2022)

(In Rupees) (In Rupees)

Gross Income 707,583,998 363,267,184

Expenditure 733,050,327 602,425,367

Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation & Tax (25,466,329) (239,158,183)

Less: Depreciation 55,882,234 77,331,674

Less: Provision for Taxation i i
(Including Deferred Tax)

Less: Provision for Proposed Dividend i i
(Including Dividend Tax)

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax (81,348,563) (316,489,857)

Balance carried to Balance Sheet (81,348,563) (316,489,857)

OPERATIONS & PERFORMANCE:

As at March 2023, the Company recorded total sales of INR 3.37 billion and a revenue of INR 0.70 billion
with 75.85% and 94.78% growth respectively against the same period last year. During the reporting
period we made impressive progress despite the delay in launching digital initiatives like Salesforce and
Revolving Loans and managed to achieve significant sales growth. In the financial year 2022-23, we reached
INR 3.37 billion in sales, compared to INR 1.91 billion in the previous year, exceeding the budget by 110%
(vs LY 252%) by focusing on strengthening dealer relationships and building loyalty among them.

During the period under review, we have become a major Two-Wheeler financier with a market share of
approximately 12% (reaching around 15% during the festival season) in Mumbai. We have also made
substantial progress in expanding our dealer network, by developing 339 dealers, bringing the total
number of empaneled dealers to 1135. Our active dealer count stands at an impressive 49% which will
help the company in achieving the Sales Volume in FY 2023-24.

To foster stronger relationships and loyalty among dealers, we have implemented trust-building initiatives
such as issuing preferred financier certificates and quarterly award programs. These initiatives have
contributed to improving sales and market share, despite the delay in launching digital initiatives. Further
in order to achieve personal loan sales, without waiting for the digital process to start, we have launched
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direct PL sales through empanelled dealers and open market sourcing, resulting in approximately 88
million in sales.

Maintaining the quality of the portfolio has been a priority for us. During the year under review, we have
consistently achieved DO collections above 98.50%, indicating strong repayment behavior from
borrowers. We have managed to control the net non-performing assets (NPAs) at 1.60% even after settling
around INR 3.37 billion in sales. We have been successful in maintaining almost zero non-starters
throughout the year. In July 2022, we made a strategic movement by launching an Instagram channel to
expand our online presence and engage with our target audience.

Additionally, we have focused on enhancing our website's lead generation capabilities. By improving our
lead generation form, we have made it easier for potential customers to express interest and inquire about
our products and services. The revamped form provides a seamless user experience, resulting in a higher
conversion rate and improved lead generation mainly for personal loan product.

During the period under review, we recently launched a WhatsApp channel in March 2023. This movement
allows us to connect with our customers on a more personal and direct level. Our WhatsApp channel serves
as a platform for update on marketing promotions and EMI reminders to our customers.

The implementation of a Facebook and Instagram campaign aimed at reaching targeted customers for
Personal loans. The objective was to leverage these popular social media platforms to increase brand
visibility, engage potential borrowers, and drive loan applications. Our Facebook followers experienced
significant growth over the past year and we achieved an impressive increase of 124%.

Our digitalization initiative focused on leveraging the Sales Force platform to streamline our sales processes
and enhance overall efficiency. We are enhancing the digital presence and offering an improved user
experience, we have started reworking on AEON Elite App project which will give user satisfaction and
promoting brand loyalty set to launch in 2023.

The bad debt expenses was recorded at INR 51.63 million. Despite having better sales and revenue during
FY 2022-23, the company recorded a net loss amounting to INR 81 million as against INR 316 million in the
previous year.

During the year under review, AEON Financial Service Co. Ltd. Japan our Holding company has injected
further Equity Capital of INR 1 billion in order to strengthen the financial position and to attain its growth
objectives by way of expansion in accordance with the Mid-Term Plan of the company.

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND BUSINESS PLANS:

The management is making significant progress in implementing Sales Force, customer onboarding module
by mid-year 2023, which will greatly enhance our customer onboarding module and reduce the loan
processing time. The management has set an ambitious sales target of INR 478 crores for the current
financial year. The planned Digital initiatives such as Salesforce for customer onboarding, Mobile app for
generating credit limit and enhancing mobile app for end to end customer journey, launching of new
products and services and network expansion can contribute significantly to achieve this GOAL.

We are under process of Implementing collection module and M-collect app to improve performance and
productivity and to streamline the collection department process with better controls. The management is
excited to announce that the development of AEON Elite App is well underway. The Aeon Elite App is
designed to provide our customers with a seamless and personalized experience. It will offer advanced
features, such as membership tier status, loyalty program, revolving loan, EMI payments, and easy access
to support. In addition to the Aeon Elite App, we are also working on the development of Aeon Fast App.
We understand the importance of speed and efficiency in today's fast-paced business environment, and the
Aeon Fast App aims at meeting those expectations. We are on track to launch the Aeon Fast App by end of
2023, which will allow our customers to get the pre-approval limits effortlessly.
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We recognize the immense potential within the insurance market, and we have started working towards
the insurance product and IRDA corporate license. We are also working on the relocation of Delhi &
Bangalore offices to conventional space during the 2nd Quarter of 2023. The management also plans to
expand the business of Western Zone to Ahmedabad, Northern Zone to Jaipur, Southern Zone to Chennai
and Hyderabad in 2rd half of the Financial Year 2023.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the Financial Year under review, due to lack of
availability of profits.

DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted / renewed any Deposits from
public within the meaning of the Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules issued by Reserve
Bank of India.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT:

There are no such material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the Company between
the end of Financial Year and the date of the Directors’ Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO:

(A) Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption:

Since the Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities, the particulars pursuant to Company
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company for the year under reference.

(B) Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2023 Year ended 31.03.2022
(from 1st Apr. 2022 to (from 1st Apr. 2021 to
31st Mar. 2023) 31st Mar. 2022)
(Amountin Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)

Earnings in Foreign Exchange - -
Expenditure in Foreign Exchange 21,998,213 27,032,422

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES IN PURSUANCE TO
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

All Related Party Transactions which were entered into by your Company during the Financial Year 2022-
23 were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially
significant Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company. Your Company
does not have contracts or arrangements with its Related Parties under Section 188(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, which are not on arm'’s length basis. Hence, the details of such contracts or arrangements with
its Related Parties are not required to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 (Annexure I) as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. Attention of the members is also drawn to the
disclosure of transactions with Related Parties as set out in Notes to the Financial Statements.
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PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENT IN PURSUANCE TO SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Your company has not given any loan, guarantee and made any investment in pursuance to the Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 during the period under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors along with its Audit Committee of the Board provide leadership and guidance to the

Company’s management and also direct, supervise and control the performance of the Company.

During the year under review, the management of the Company was carried out by the Board of Directors
comprising the following persons and the Board was duly constituted:

1) Mr. Keiichi Nambu, Managing Director;*

2) Mr. Tomo Sato, Whole Time Director ;*

3) Mr. Sanjaya Kumar Dash, Whole Time Director and Company Secretary;
4) Mr. K.P. Sunil, Whole Time Director;

5) Mr. Junichi Doi, Whole Time Director;*

6) Mr. Daisuke Maeda, Non-Executive Director;*

7) Mr. Tetsuro Takano, Non-Executive Director;*

8) Mr. Kumar Rajagopalan, Non-Executive Director;

9) Mr. Tsutomu Kamagata, Non-Executive Director.

10)  Mr. Shigeto Nasu, Non - Executive Director.*

*Further, the following changes have taken place in the composition of the Board from 15t April, 2022
till date of this report.

e Mr. Keiichi Nambu and Mr. Tsutomu Kamagata were appointed as Managing Director and Non-
Executive Director respectively w.e.f. 01.07.2022.

e  Mr. Daisuke Maeda and Mr. Tetsuro Takano resigned from the post of Non-Executive Director w.e.f.
01.07.2022.

e  Mr. Junichi Doi was appointed as a Whole Time Director and Mr. Tomo Sato resigned from the post of
Whole Time Director w.e.f. 01.09.2022.

e Mr. Shigeto Nasu was appointed as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023.

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors have met twelve times during the financial year under review on 29t April, 2022,
31stMay, 2022, 30th June, 2022, 29t July, 2022, 30st August, 2022, 30th September, 2022, 31st October, 2022,
30th November, 2022, 23rd December, 2022, 315t January, 2023, 28th February, 2023& 31st March, 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

The Audit Committee comprises of two Non-Executive Directors and one Whole Time Director. The Audit
Committee have met five times during the financial year under review on 29t April, 2022, 29t July, 2022,
30th September, 2022, 30t November, 2022 and 28t February, 2023.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AT MANAGEMENT LEVEL:

Your company has also formed a Risk Management Committee at management level as per the guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors affirm that:

i.  In the preparation of the Annual Accounts of the Company, the applicable Accounting Standards
had been followed along with the material departures;

ii.  The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year on 31st March, 2023 and Profit/Loss
for the year ended on that date;

iii. ~ The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv.  The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

v.  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ANNUAL RETURN:

The Company is having website i.e. www.aeoncredit.co.in and the annual return of the Company will be
published on such website.

AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT:

M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028) was
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the company in the 10t Annual General Meeting for a period of five
years to hold office from the conclusion of Tenth Annual General Meeting (AGM) duly held on 30t July, 2021
till the conclusion of Fifteenth Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held in the financial year 2025-2026.

The observations made by the Auditors in their Report read with relevant notes given in the Notes to
Accounts are self-explanatory and therefore do not require any comments from your Directors pursuant to
Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

The Board has appointed Ms. Ekta Rani Bolem, Company Secretary in Whole Time Practice (Membership
No. A28092, Certificate of Practice No. 24237) to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2022-23.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed herewith and marked
as Annexure II to the Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR:
As per auditor’s report, no fraud u/s 143(12) has been reported by the Auditors.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

No amount was transferred to the reserves during the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not fall
within the purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence it is not required to formulate
policy on Corporate Social Responsibility.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board and is
also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have also been
formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND
TRIBUNALS:

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

COST RECORD:
The provision of Cost Audit as per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable on the Company.

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTTEE ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy on
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the workplace in line with the provisions of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder. The Policy aims to promote a healthy work environment and to provide protection
to employees at the workplace and redress complaints of sexual harassment and related matters thereto.
The Company has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee, known as the Prevention of Sexual
Harassment (POSH) Committee, to enquire into complaints of sexual harassment and recommend
appropriate action.

The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year
2022-23:

No of complaints received: 0
No of complaints disposed off: 0

Your Company has been conducting awareness campaign across all its units/offices to encourage its
employees to be more responsible and alert while discharging their duties.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors greatly value the support and co-operation received during the period under review from
the Bankers, Statutory Authorities, Auditors and Employees of the company at all level.

For and on behalf of the Board

/7

PLACE: Mumbai KEIICHI NAMBU
DATE: 29.06.2023 MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Annexure-I
FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis:

Not Applicable

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm'’s length basis:

Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board

AN

PLACE: Mumbai NS\ - c KEIICHI NAMBU
DATE: 29.06.2023 - MANAGING DIRECTOR



EKTA RANI BOLEM

COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
AEON Credit Service India Private Limited
Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400070

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s AEON Credit Service
India Private Limited having (CIN: U66000MH2011FTC214516) (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations
made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, generally complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject

to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, according

to the provisions of:

=T
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under, as may be

applicable;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings.

(iii) Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are
applicable to Non-Deposit taking NBFC which are specifically applicable to the
Company.

(iv) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the
Management :

a) Income Tax Act, 1961;

b) Goods and Service Tax Act,

c¢) RBI Master Direction — Non Banking Financial Company - Non Systematically
Important Non Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

d) Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991;

e) Registration Act, 1908;

f) Indian Stamp Act, 1899;

g) Indian Contract Act, 1872;

h) Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881;

i) Information Technology Act, 2000;

j) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002;

k) Consumer Protection Act, 1986;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards
pursuant to Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), as amended from time to time, were applicable to

the Company for the period under review.
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
above mentioned Act(s), Rules, Regulations, Directions, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under

review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors for the Board Meetings including
Committees thereof, along with the agenda and detailed notes on agenda at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation including through Visual presence at the meeting. During
the period under review, decisions were carried through unanimously and no dissenting
views were observed, while reviewing the minutes. We further report that the Company

has passed certain resolutions through circulation during the Audit period.

We further report that as per the explanations given to us and the representations made
by the Management and relied upon by us there are adequate systems and processes in
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and

ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has filed all the relevant e-

forms with the Registrar of companies within the statutory time period.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken following

significant and material corporate events/actions having a bearing on the Company’s

-
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affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards,

etc.:

1. The Company has issued and allotted 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores Only) Equity
Shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to AEON Financial Service

Co., Limited, Japan, vide circular resolution dated 22th April, 2022;

2. Mr. Daisuke Maeda and Mr. Tetsuro Takano, Non-Executive Directors have tendered
their resignations from the post of Non-Executive Director of the Company effective
from 01t July, 2022. The Board of Directors accepted their resignations during its
119™ meeting on 30%" June, 2022. The Statutory e-form DIR-12 pertaining to their
cessation has been duly filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of

India within the prescribed deadline.

3. The Board of Directors in its 119t meeting held on 30" June, 2022 appointed Mr.
Keiichi Nambu as Managing Director (Additional Director) of the Company for a
period of three years effect from 01t July, 2022 till 30" June, 2025. The
Shareholders in its 11™ Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2022 approved the
regularization of Mr. Nambu as a Director on the Board. The requisite statutory e-
form DIR-12 and MGT-14 w.r.t.his appointment has been duly filed with the Ministry

of Corporate Affairs, Government of India within the prescribed deadline.

4. Mr. Tsutomu Kamagata has been appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director
of the Company effective from 15t July, 2022. The Shareholders in its 11" Annual
General Meeting held on 30.09.2022 approved the regularization of Mr. Kamagata
as a Director on the Board. The Statutory e-form DIR-12 w.r.t.his appointment has
been duly filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India within

the prescribed deadline.

-
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5. Mr. Junichi Doi has been appointed as Whole Time Director (Additional Director) on
the Board of Directors of the company w.e.f 15t September, 2022 till 315t August,
2025. The shareholders in its 11% Annual General Meeting approved the

regularization of Mr. Doi as a Director on the Board.

6. The Board of Directors in its 1215t meeting held on 30" August, 2022 accepted the

resignation of Mr. Tomo Sato from the post of Whole Time Director of the Company.

7. The Annual Return of the Company for the Financial year 2021-22 has been filed in
prescribed e-form MGT-7 with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Annual

Accounts along with the Directors’ Report has been filed in e-form AOC-4.

We further report that during the audit period, there was no other event/action having

major bearing on affairs of the Company

For Ekta Rani Bolem

T S\ CTARIES) )
CS Ekta Rani Bolem
Mem. No. A28092

CoP No. 24237
Firm Unique Code: I12018DE1856300

Date: 29|06|2023
Place : New Delhi
UDIN: A028092E000520078
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To,

COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Members,
AEON Credit Service India Private Limited

Mu

mbai, Maharashtra- 400070

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of the procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ekta Rani Bolem
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of AEON Credit Service India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AEON Credit Service India Private
Limited (‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended, (“Accounting Standards”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, and its loss, its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We- conducted our audit of financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Financial Statements.

3. Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
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with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

The above information is not made available to us as at the date of this Auditor’s report. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

4. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

5. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the Financial Statements made by the
Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
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statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

b. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

il.

1il.

iv.

vi.

vii.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified
as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March
31,2023, on its financial position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note
XX of Financial Statements;

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. a The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultlmate
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Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

o Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

V. During the year the Company has neither declared nor paid any
dividend, as such compliance of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

Vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable for the company only w.ef. 1st April, 2023, reporting in
respect of mandatory use of accounting software with requisite audit
trail facility is not applicable.

c. The provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the
Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2 (71) of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s Registration No. 006711N/N500028
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of (Co
*
0
o .
Membership No. 076650

UDIN: 23076650BGUWMD1864
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2023
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the AEON
CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2023;

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that;

(1) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

@ A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b}  The Property, Plantand Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification of the Property, Plant and Equipment is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) There is no Immovable Property in the books of accounts of the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
assets during the period.

(e) Asdisclosed by management in note 39(b}of the financial statement, no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2023, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) Inventories

(a) The Company is a service company primarily engaged in lending business.
Accordingly, it does not hold any inventories. Thus, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore in
aggregate during the year from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. The limit sanctioned to the Company are secured by corporate
guarantee of its Holding Company only. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.
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(iii) Loans, Investments, Guarantees, Securities and Advances in nature of Loan

The Company has not made investments in and provided any guarantee or security to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

The Company is a Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company Non-Banking
Financial Company ('NBFC')} registered with the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') and as a part
of its business activities is engaged in the business of lending various types of loans.

During the year, in the ordinary course of its business, the Company has granted loans and
advances in the nature of loans to other parties. With respect to such loans and advances;

(a) Since the Company is principally engaged in providing loans reporting under clause
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, having regard to the nature of the Company’s business, the terms and
conditions of the loans granted during the year are prima facie not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

(c) Inrespect of loans and advances in nature of loans, granted by the Company during
the normal course of its business, having regard to the voliminous nature of the loan
transactions, it is not practicable to provide an itemised list of loan assets, due date
for repayment or receipt and the extent of delay in this report (as suggested in the
Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India for reporting under this clause), in respect of loans and advances which were
not repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the overdue amount for more than 90
days stands at Rs. 586.17 Lakh. The Company has generally taken reasonable steps
in its normal course of business for recovery of overdue principal and interest in
respect of such loans.

(e) As Company is principally engaged in providing loans, hence the reporting under
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances, in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year.

(iv) Compliance of Sec. 185 & 186

The Company has not given loans or guarantees to directors or other persons in which a
director is interested or provide security in connection with a loan and as such section 185
of the Companies Act is not applicable. The Company has not made any investment,
accordingly compliance of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applic
company.
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) Public Deposit

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules
framed there under apply. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vi) Cost Records

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) Statutory Dues

(@) The amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, cess and other applicable statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, goods and service
tax, value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise;

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, cess and other applicable
statutory dues which were in arrears as at March 31, 2023, for a year of more than
six months from the date they become payable;

(b) Thecompany does not have any disputed statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)
above, Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(vii)(b)} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(viii}  As disclosed by management in note 39(f) of the financial statement, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

(ix) Application & Repayment of Loans & Borrowings

(@) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings or repayment of
interest thereon on the to any lender, during the period.

(b)  As disclosed by the management in note 39 (c) of the financial statements, the
Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

adha 2
C}:" -
<& e

N il
%7, U
Corporate / Regd. Office: B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Building, New Delhi - 110001 !I =1 *’-’i‘%,ﬁ. i “
Phone : 43259900, Fax : 43259930, E-mail : delhi@trchadha.com \% £
N K
4 4 Noida

Branches at: ¢ Ahmedabad < Bengaluru < Chennai < Gurgaon < Hyderabad < Pune % Tirupati %*

—



T R Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

E 2001-02, 20 Floor, Lotus Corporate Park,
Off Western Express Highway,

Ram Mandir Station Road,

Goregaon East, Mumbai 400063

Tel.: 022-49669000

Email: mumbai@trchadha.com

() Term loans availed by the Company during the year have been generally applied for
the purpose for which they were obtained other than temporary deployment in
liquid assets pending application

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiary or joint ventures or associate.
Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

§i) The company does not have any subsidiary. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Application of funds raised

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has made preferential allotment during the year in compliance with
Section 62 of the Companies Act and the funds raised have been used for the
purposes for which the said funds were raised.

(xi) Fraud

(a) No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit nor have we been informed of any such case by the
management.

(b)  Noreportunder sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

() As Section 177(9) of the Companied Act,2013 is not applicable to the Company
accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, with respect to transactions with the related parties and the details of related
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party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) Internal Audit
(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate

with the size and nature of its business;

(b) We have considered the reports of internal auditors issued to the Company for the
year under audit.

(xv) During the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) Registration u/s 45-1IA of RBI Act
(a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated February 04,
2013.

(b) The Company has a valid certificate of registration from Reserve Bank of India;

(o) The Company is not a core investment company and accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(d) Asrepresented to us, the Group does not have any core investment company as part
of the Group and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 206.30 lakhs during the current financial year
covered and Rs 2,388.57 lakhs the immediately preceding financial year;

(xviii) As per RBI circular no. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref No. DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22
dated April 27, 2021, the Statutory Auditor have resigned upon completion of their term of
appointment as per the requirement of the said circular. There has not been any issues,
concerns or objections raised by the outgoing auditor, based on our communication with
outgoing auditor as required under ICAI Code of Ethics;

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a year of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
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guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a year of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) As disclosed by management in note 38 of the financial statements, the Company was not
required to spend any amount towards CSR as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xxi)  Reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable as the Company does not have any
subsidiary/associates and does not required to present consolidated financial statement.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 006711N/N500028
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Date: June 29, 2023 Membership No. 076650
UDIN: 23076650BGUWMD1864
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Annexure- B to The Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023, of AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the

Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of AEON
Credit Service India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2023:

The system generated report does not provide correct position of interest accrual, account
position of migrated loan from erstwhile software and borrower-wise classification, which
needs to be rectified on manual basis.

A 'material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI").

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2023 financial
statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI"). These responsibilities include the desxgn
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were /p At
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effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) .

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

4. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
=
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acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Pramo wani
Partner
Membership No. 076650

UDIN: 23076650BGUWMD1864
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2023
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AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs "000

Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ funds
(a} Share capital 3 4,200,000.00 3,200,000.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 (3,032,608.30) (2,951,259.74)
1,167,391.70 248,740.26
{2) Non-current liabilities
(b} Long-term provisions 5 17,980.21 14,872.42
{3) Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 6 2,545,000.00 1,577,000.00
(b} Trade payables 7
(i) Total outstanding dues of other than Micro, Small and 52.50 89.69
Medium Enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities 8 77.263.24 47.052.05
(d) Short-term provisions 9 10,980.66 5,598.80
2,633,296.40 1,629,740.53
TOTAL 3,818,668.31 1,893,353.19
W ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets 10
(i) Property, plant and equipment 25,603.10 31,342.08
(i) Intangible assets 64,287.14 100,956.78
(i) Intangible Assets under development 47,708.20 44,021.68
(b} Receivables under financing activity - Non-current 1 1,621,433.74 713,377.93
1,758,932.18 889,698.45
(2) Current assets
(a} Receivables under financing activity - Current 12 1,829,086.52 873,216.32
{b) Cash and cash equivalents 13 19,075.28 10,498.20
(c) Short-term loans and advances 14 76,204.80 34,170.29
(dy Other current assets 15 136,369.53 86,769.93
2,059,736.13 1,003,654.74
TOTAL 3,818,668.31 1,893,353.19
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements 242

As per our report of even date

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number-006711N/N500028

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29th June 2023

For AEON Credit Service India Private Limited

Keiichi Nambu
Managing Director
(DIN:09646771)

o

K.P

Executive Director

(DIN:09199165)

Sanjaya Kumar Dash
Company Secretary

(M.No.F7043)



AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs '000

Particulars Note
No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Revenue from operations 16 554,513.32 213,767.74
I Other income 17 153,070.68 149,489.44
[ Total Income (I+Il) 707,584.00 363,267.18
Employee benefits expense 18 269,332.92 201,748.19
Finance costs 19 109,632.79 56,668.69
Depreciation/Amortisation expense 10 55,882.23 77.331.67
Other expenses 20 354,084.62 344,008.46
Total Expenses 788,932.56 679,757.01
v Loss before tax (81,348.56) (316,489.83)
Vi Less: Tax expense
{i) Current tax expense ] -
(if} Deferred tax 30 i =
Vil Loss after tax (81,348.56) (316,489.83)
Vil Earnings per share {Face value of shares Rs. 10 each} 29
(i) Basic (0.19) {0.99)
(i) Diluted {0.19) {0.99)
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements 2-42

As per our report of even date

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number-006711N/N500028

Pramo ani
Partne
Membership No- 076650

Pilace: Mumbai

Date: 29th June 2023

¥

Keilichi Nambu
Managing Director
(DIN:09646771)

K.P Sunil
Executive Director
(DIN:09199165)

o

For AEON Credit Service ndia Private Limited

Sanjaya Kumar Dash
Company Secretary
(M.No.F7043)



AECON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Stat t for the year ended March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs ‘000

: For the year ended For the year ended)|
Particulars Myarch, 2023 I\¥arch. 2022
A, |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax (81,348.56) (316,489.85)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 55,882.23 7733167
Intarest from banks on deposits / TA & Others (2,339.59) (75.95)
Interest income from financing activity {500,503.13) (193,076.43}
Interest on borrowings 105,610.80 5402885
Write off of Security Deposit - 1,195.00
Provision for retirement benefits A 85574 1,183.76
Provision far doubtful receivables under financing activity 4512926 {233.802.93)
Contingent provision against standard assets 4,833.91 301.12
(3ain) f Loss on foreign exchange translation (nef) 477.95 55822
(287,352 83) (292,356.69)
Qperating Loss before Working Capital changes (368,701.40) {608,846.55)
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for {increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Receivables under financing activity -Non current {933,831.71} 417,244 51
Receivablas under financing acivity -Current (975,222.56) (520,392.12)
Long-term icans and advances - -
Other current assets (21,636.97) 2524997
Short-term loans and advances (42,034.51) (27,397.51)
Adjustments for increase f {decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables {37.19) (7.451.24)
Other currant liabilities 0,211.18 (37 726.48)
Cash used in operations after working capital changes and before
adjustments for interest received and interest paid (2,311,253.15) (759,319.42)
Interest received 472,549.99 221,997 42
Interest paid (105,510.80) {54,028.85)
Cash used in operations (1,944,213.96) (591,350.85)
Income-tax paid {taxes deducted at source) {net) %
NET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&) (1,944,213.96) (591,350.85)
B. |CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest from banks on deposits 84.30 7565
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including capital advance (17,158.71) (17,648.47)
Proceeds from deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents (9.98) 337.03
Sale of properly, pant and equipment 98.13 1.133.52
Bank balance not considered as cash and cash equivalents - Placed 1.703.82 1,628.60
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (15,282.44) {14,473.67)
C. |CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from unsecured working capilal demand loan 3,018,000.00 600,500.00
Repayment for unsecured working capital demand boan {2,050,000.00)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 1,000,000.00 i
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} 1,968,000.00 600,500.00
NET {DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 8,503.60 (5,324.52)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,869.20 14,192.38
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 17,372.80 8,867.85
As at Ag at
March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash in hand - -
Balance with banks:
In current accounts 17,371.46 8,869.20
In ather deposit accounts 1,703.82 1,628.00
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 19,075.28 10,498.19
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 13) 19,075.28 10,498.19
Less: Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents as defined in
AS 3 Cash Flow Statements: -
In other depesit accounts b
- oniginal maturity more than 3 months 1,703.82 1,629.00
Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined In AS 3 Cash Flow Statements) 17,371.45| 8,869.20

See accompanying notes farming part of the Financial Statements (2-42)
In terms of our report attached

For TR Chadha & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29th Juns 2023

Keilchi Nambu
Managing Cirector
(DIN:0964677 1)

’\1\\}?{&“/

Executive Director
{DIN:09199165)

For AEON Credit Service India Private Limited

Sanjaya Kumar Dash
Company Secretary
{M.No.F7043)



AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Background of the Company

AEON Credit Service India Private Limited (the "Company™) was incorporated on March 9, 2011. The
Company has obtained a license from the Reserve Bank of India to carry out Non-Banking Financial
activities with effect from February 4, 2013. The Company is in the business of financing two-wheelers,
used two wheelers, used cars, commercial cars and granting of personal loans.

Significant Accounting Policies

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

Basis for preparation of accounts

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP") to comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended ("Accounting Standards™). Further, the Company
follows the Reserve Bank of India (RBl) Directions issued for Non-Banking Financial Companies
(NBFC). The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the previous year.

Current assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realized within one year and
current liabilities do not include items which are due after one year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting year. Examples of such accounting
estimates include employee benefits, assessment of income taxes and useful lives of fixed assets.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation / amortisation. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are stated at cost of acquisition, including any cost
attributable for bringing the same to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated
amortisation and impairment,

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment

At each Balance Sheet date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets were impaired. |f any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. An
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. In assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of asset and from its
ultimate disposal are discounted to the present value using a pre-determined discount rate that reflects
the current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized immediately as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation/famortisation is provided using the Straight Line Method (SLM) at the following useful life
which are higher than or equal to the useful lives specified in Scheduie Il to the Companies Act, 2013;

Assets Useful Life in years
Furniture and fixtures 5
Office equipment 5
Computers 2




Server (included in Computers) 5

Computer software 5t07
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the unexpired period of lease.

g) Revenue Recognition

Income from loan transactions is accounted for by allocating finance income on a systematic basis
over the tenure of the loan. No income is recognized on non-performing assets as per the prudential
norms for income recognition by the Reserve Bank of India for Non-Banking Financial Companies
(NBFCs). Interest income on such assets is recognized on receipt basis.

Upfront processing fees collected from the customer for processing loans are primarily towards
documentation charges. This is accounted as income when the amount becomes due provided the
recovery thereof is not uncertain.

Penalties recovered for banking instruments dishonored are recognized on receipt basis.

Interest income on fixed deposit is accounted for on an accrual basis.

h} Receivables under financing activity

i.  Receivables under financing activity represent principal and matured finance charges outstanding
at the close of the year net of amount provided.

ii. ~ The Company assesses all receivables for their recoverability and accordingly makes provisions
for non-performing assets as considered necessary. The Company provides for entire
receivables, where the instaliments are overdue for a period exceeding 3 months which includes
provision on standard assets and the additional provision on moratorium cases in terms of RBI
circular RBIf2019-20/220/DOR. No. BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2020-21 dated April 17, 2020. The
Company ensures that the said provisions are not lower than the provisions stipulated by the
Reserve Bank of India (the "RBI").

ii. A general provision is made, as mentioned in (ii) above, by the Company on the standard assets
and disclosed under “Short terms provisions” in Note 9 in the financial statements as required by
the RBI.

) Leases

Leases are dlassified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the
inception of lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments as determined at the
inception of lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability. Finance
charges are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease rentals under operating lease are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis.

i}  Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of such
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Gains or losses arising on account of
differences in foreign exchange rates on seftlement/translation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are measured in
terms of historical cost using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and are not retranslated.

kY Taxation
Tax expense/fcredit comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax; Cument tax expenses are determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income-
tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates which have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax expenses or benefit is
recognised, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the difference between
the taxable incomes and accounting income that originated in one year and are capable of reversing int
one or more subsequent years.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible timing differences and are carried forward to
extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient taxable profit will be available to realise thg:
assets.




In the event of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses, deferred tax asset is recognised
only to the extent there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient taxable
income will be available to realise these assets.

) Employee Benefits
i.  Gratuity:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent
to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or a part thereof in excess of six
menths. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the
liability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation.

ii. Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund,
a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary (currently 12% of
employee’s basic salary). The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the respective
Regional Provident Fund.

ii. Compensated absences:

The Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences are determined by an independent
actuary as at the end of the reporting year, using the projected unit credit method.

m, Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs aftributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset is capitalized as a
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the year in which

they are incurred.

n) Provisions and contingent liabilifies

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their
present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are not recognised
in the financial statements.

0) Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly fiquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

p) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the “indirect method”, set out in the Accounting Standard 3 “Cash Flow
Statemments” and presents the cash flow by operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company.

Cash and cash equivalents presented in cash flow statement consists of cash in hand and
unencumbered, highly liquid bank and other balances that are readily convertibie into kntown amounts
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q) Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) in accardance with the Accounting
Standard 20 “Eamings per Share”. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adj
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the resuits are anti-dilutive.




AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

Note 3: Share capital
Amount in Rs '000

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Authorised:
420,000,000 (2022: 420,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 4,200,000.00  4,200,000.00
420,000,000 {2022: 320,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 4,200,000.00  3,200,000.00
Notes:
Note 3.1: Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period:
. . Closing
Particulars Opening Balance Fresh issue Balance
Equity Shares with voting rights -issued, subscribed and fully
Year ended March 31, 2023
Number of shares ("000) 320,000.00 100,000 420,000.00
Amount in Rs '000 3,200,000.00 1,000,000.00 | 4,200,000.00
Year ended March 31, 2022
Number of shares ('000) 320,000.00 - 320,000.00
Amount in Rs '000 3,200,000.00 - 3,200,000.00

Note 3.2: Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiares and associates :

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Class of shares / Name of shareholder Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares held shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
AEON Financial Service Co., Ltd. Japan (Holding 401,800.00 96% 301,800.00 94%
Company and promoter) (000)
AEON Credit Service (M) Berhad, a subsidiary of 18,200.00 4% 18,200.00 6%
the holding company ('000)

Note 3.3: Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Class of shares / Name of shareholder Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares held shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
AEON Financial Service Co., Ltd. Japan ('000) 401,800.00 96% 301,800.00 94%
AEON Credit Service (M) Berhad ('000) 18,200.00 4% 18,200.00 6%

Note 3.4: Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has single class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Note 3.5: Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Share 95 omoters at the end of the year| Number of % holding % change during the year
{o shares held
401,800.00 96% 301,800.00 9

Note 3.7: There are no shares in the preceding 5 years allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in ca

bonus shares / bought back. _&J\/




AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

Note 4: Reserves and surplus

Opening balance of Statement of Profit and Loss
Add: Loss for the year

Closing balance

Note 5: Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity
Compensated absences

Note 6: Short-term borrowings
Unsecured Working Capital demand loan from Bank*

* Working capital demand loan from bank are guaranteed by AEON Financial
Service Co,, Ltd. Japan

Note 7: Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer Note 21)

Others- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium
enterprises (Refer Note 21)

Total

Note 8: Other current liabilities

Other payables
Statutory remittances
Expenses Payables
Salary and Bonus Payable to employees
Excess received from customer
Trade Payables (Refer Note 27)
Unallocated credit from customers

Total

Note 9: Short Term Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated absences

Contingent provision against standard assets (Refer Note 2(h)(iii)}
Total

As at
March 31, 2023

(2,951,259.74)

Amount in Rs '000

As at
March 31, 2022

(2,634,769.91)

(81,348.56) (316,489.83)
(3,032,608.30) (2,951,259.74)
9,893.93 8,510.74
8,086.28 6,361.68
2,545,000.00 1,577,000.00
52.50 89.69
52.50 89.68
7,597.63 6,684.92
42,361.46 16,663.41
7,750.73 3,613.33
131.31 12,131.25
1,128.18 683.72
18,293.93 7,275.42
77,263.24 47,052.05
883.26 636.41
1,437.95 1,136.85
8,659.45 3,825.54
10,980.66 5,598.80




AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

Note 10: Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs "000

Gross Block

Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation MNet Block
Particulars As at Additions during | Deductions and As at As at For the year Deductions and As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 the year adjustments March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 ¥ adjustments March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures 8,381.43 8.04 8,389.47 6,451.94 144226 7,894.20 495.27
{11,831.42) = {3,449.98) (8,381.44) (6,203.31) {1,727.15) {1,578.53) {6,451.93) (1.929.51)
Office equipment §,180.67 4,767.44 13,968.11 7,253.74 1,362.31 8,616.06 5,352.06
{9,804.71) (683.03) {1,307.07) {9,180.67) {6,914.40) {989.55) {650.20) {7,253.75) {1,926.92)
Leasehold improvements 30,817.73 - 30,817.72 26,874.37 3,943.35 30,817.72 0.00
{49,706.48) 3 (18,888.75) {30,817.73) (30,903.38) (1341517} (17.444.18) (26,874.37) {3,943.36)
Computers 113,152.34 5,008.28 118,260.62 93,072.80 552205 98,594.85 19.655.77
(108,145.25) (9,770.49) {1,300.686) (116,615.08) {82,568.11) {11,346.21) (861.52) (93,072.80) {23,542.28)
Total (A) 161,532.17 9,893.76 - 171,425.93 133,652.85 12,269.97 - 145,923.82 25,503.10
Previous Year (179,487.86) {10,453.52) (24,946 47) (164,994.92) {126,709.20) {27.478.08) (20,534.43) {132,662.85) {31,342.06)
Intangible Assats*:
Computer software 227,804.59 3,578.42 12,724.83 218,658.18 123,383.97 43,613.28 12,626.19 154,371.04 64,287.14
(212,070.48) (12,787.76) {517.50) {224,340.74) {73.531.37) (49,852.59) {122,383.96) (100,956.78)
Total (B} 227,804.59 3,578.42 12,724.683 218,658.18 123,383.97 43,613.28 12,626.19 154,371.04 64,287.14
Previous Year {212,070.48) (12,787.76) {517.50) (224,340.74) {73.531.37N (49,852.59) - {123,382.98) {100,956.78)
Total (A+B) 389,336.76 13,472.18 12,724.83 380,085.11 257,036.82 55,883.23 12,626.19 300,294.86 89,750.24
Previous Year {391,558.34) (23,241,28) {25,463.97) {389,335.668) (200,240.57) {77.,330.68) (20,534.43) (257,036.81} {132,298.84)

The figures in bracket are the corresponding figures for the previous year.
There has been reclassification between computer software and computer in the current year
*There are no internally generaled intangible assets.




AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

Note 11: Receivables under financing activity- Non current*

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for payment
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables under financing activity

Others
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables under financing activity

Total
Note 12 : Receivables under financing activity- Current*

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for payment
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables under financing activity

Others
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables under financing activity

Total

Amount in Rs '000

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,621,433.74 698,729.60
32,296.26 21,168.69
1,653,730.00 719,898.29
32,296.26 6,520.36
1,621,433.74 713,377.93
1,621,433.74 713,377.93
1,829,086.52 831,486.54
26,320.82 48,697.24
1,855,407.34 8580,183.78
26,320.82 6,967.46
1,820,086.52 873,216.32
1,829,086.52 873,216.32

*The fair value of assets financed is not ascertainable and hence all the loans are disclosed as unsecured.




AEQON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 Amount in Rs '000
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks: {Refer note below)
in current accounts 17.371.46 8,869.20
In other deposit accounts 1,703.82 1,629.00
Total 19,075.28 10,498.20
Note:

Of the above, the balances that do not meet the definition of Cash and cash equivalents as per Accounting Standard ("AS") 3 Cash Flow
Statements is Balances with banks- other deposits accounts aggregating Rs. 1,703.82 thousand (Previous year: Rs.1,629 thousand)

Note 14: Short-term loans and advances
{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)

Advance to merchant and employees 76,204.80 34,170.29
Total 76,204.80 34,170.29

Note 15: Other current assets

Balances with government authorities 37.457.77 29,240.35
Prepaid expenses 28,452.84 15,628.46
Security deposits 12,921.27 12,396.09
Receivable from Group Companies = 6.64
Interest accrued on deposits 35.81 26.33
Accrued interest from financing activity 56,425.20 28,472.06
Other (assets) 66.64 =
135,369.53 85,769.93

v




AEON CREDIT SERVICE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 16: Revenue from operations
Interest income from financing activity

Processing fees
Total

Note 17: Other income

Penalty recovered for banking instruments dishonoured
Recovery from written off asset

Interest from banks on deposits

Unallocated credit from customers written back
Miscellaneous income

Profit on sale of assets

Repossesion Charges Income

Interest Income on TA

Total

Note 18: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and incentives {Refer Note 23 and Note 27}
Contribution to welfare fund (Refer Note 25)

Gratuity (Refer Note 25)

Staff welfare expenses

Tofal

Note 19: Finance costs

Interest on borrowings

Corporate guarantee fees (Refer Note 23 and 27)
Bank charges

Total

Note 20: Other expenses

Power and fusl

Rent including lease rentals {Refer Note 28)
Insurance

Rates and taxes

Communication expenses

Travelling expenses

Postage and courier expenses

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional (Refer Note 23)

Agency charges

Payment to auditors (Refer Note below)
Customer credit appraisals

Transaction processing charges

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipement
Repossesion Charges Expense

Brokerage

Business promotion

Provision for doubtful receivables under financing activity
Contingent Provision against standard asset
Loss on foreign exchange translation (net)
Software expenses (Refer Note 23 and Note 27)
Security deposit written off

Office expenses

Recovery/Loss on Repossessed Assets
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Amount in Rs "000

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
500,503.13 193,076.43
54,010.19 ok 20,691.31
554,513.32 213,767.74
8.251.23 6,025.53
122,472.15 137,856.00
84.30 75.95
20,791.39 2,777.95
937.97 2,351.82
- 304.96
353.89 -
179.75 17.53
153,070.68 149,499.44
250,624.51 188,066.82
12,913.27 11,097.97
2,662.04 1,154.01
3.133.10 1,429.39
269,332.92 201,748.19
105,510.80 £4,028.85
3,114.92 2,179.45
1,007.07 460.39
109,632.79 56,668.69
1,061.38 1,358.82
28,797.55 31,138.30
1,961.38 1,621.20
6,840.33 2,227.06
2,223.34 2,548.08
8,168.20 2,755.42
1,058.92 358.09
2,064.08 662.57
4,550.58 6,934.95
32,463.67 31,818.95
3,269.22 1,778.70
7,118.94 6,213.54
2,290.08 2,268.78
80.79 3,795.88
3.70 -
2,670.97 -
25,239.05 9,026.13
144,577.73 174,163.39
4,833.91 30112
477.95 558.22
- 3,322.85
- 1,185.00
1,752.87 6,667.96
7.401.23 3,046.43
1.944.90 934.65
354,084.62 344,008.46
2,113.00 1.526.00
992.72 218.00
163.50 32.70
3,269.22 1,776.70

o &M



21. The identification of vendors as a “Supplier” under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 has been done on the basis of the information provided by the vendors to the Company. This has been
relied upon by the auditors.

As at As
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 20
Rs. In ‘000 Rs.In ‘0
+ Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end
(iy Principal
(i} Interest =
« Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act =
+ Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made -
beyond the appointed day during the year
* Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end -
» Amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid -
22. Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at the Balance Sheet Date:
Exposures in foreign Currency
Particutars Foreign As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Currency
Exchange | Amount | Amountin | Exchang | Amountin | Amountin
Rate in foreign Rs.’000 e Rate foreign Rs.
currency currency
{Rs.’000) (Rs.’000)
l. Assets
Receivables {trade &
other) - - - - - - -
Total Receivable (A} - - - - - - -
Hedges by derivative /
forward contracts (B} - - - - - -
Unhedged receivable
(C=A-B) - - - - - = B
Particulars Foreign As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Currency
Exchange | Amount Amountin | Exchang | Amountin | Amountin
Rate in foreign | Rs.'000 e Rate foreign Rs.’000
currency currency
(Rs.’000) {Rs.’000)
1. Liabilities
Payables (trade &
others) JPY 0.6195 8,944 .34 5,541.77 0.6533 1,041.29 680.30
Payables (trade &
others) usD - - - - - -
Total Payabfes (D} JPY 0.6195 8,944.84 5,541.77 0.6533 1,041.29 680.30
Total Payables (D) uspD - - - - - -
Hedges by derivative /
forward contracts (E) - - - < 5 = >
Unhedged payables
(F=D-E) JBY 0.6195 8,944.84 5,541.77 0.6533 1,041.29 680.30
Unhedged payables i i ) ) 3
= usb
JPY 0.6195 8,944.84 5,541.77 0.6533 1,041.29 €80.30
usD - - A




23. Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in 000

Salaries, allowances, and incentives 13.923.55 21,530.12
Corporate guarantee fees 3,114.92 217945
Legal and professional 157.29 0
Traveling Expenses 1,295.14 0
Software expenses 3,124.33 3,322.85
Training, Membership and Subscription 382.98 0
Total 21,998.21 27,032.42

24. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:

During the year FY 2017-2018, the CIT {(Appeals}), with respect to the demand of Rs. 1,051.03 thousand for
income tax disallowances for AY 2012-13, had decided the matter in favour of the Company. Pursuant to the
CIT (Appeals) order, the Company had received refund of Rs.1,306.93 thousand. However, the order giving
effect of the appeal is pending to be received by the Company.

One of our customers has launched a complaint against the company for deficiency of service and unfair trade
practices and complaint has prayed for Rs.10,50,000/- for mental Agony and Physical hardship along with cost.
Though the above claims are sub-judice, any comments on the outcome of the case results shall be
appropriate. The Hon'ble Court shall decide on the same based on the merits of the case. The Company is
confident of winning the said case.

25,

Defined Contribution plan:

i. The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to a defined contribution plan administered by the
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company has recognized Rs. 11,857.53
thousand (2022: Rs. 8,911.78 thousand) for Provident Fund contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2023. The contribution made by the Company is in accordance with the rules
framed by the Government from time to time.

The Company makes contributions to Employees’ State Insurance Corporation at a specified percent of basic
salary. The Company has recognized Rs. 563.75 thousand (2022: Rs.1,114.10 thousand) for Employees’
State Insurance Contribution under staff welfare expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended March 31, 2023,

ii. The Company operates un-funded defined benefit plan for gratuity. The plan provides for a lump sum payment
to employee, at retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to
15 days salary for each completed year of service or a part thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of continuous service. The detail of gratuity plan is as follows:

For the year ended | For the year ended
Description March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount in Rs. '000 | Amountin Rs.’000
1. Reconciliation of opening & closing bal. of obligation
a. Opening obligation 9,147.12 8.584.61
b. Current service cost 2,092.30 1.914.63
¢. Interest cost 658.12 574.76
d. Actuarial {gain) / losses (88.39) (1,335.39)
€. Benefits Paid (1,031.98) (591.50)
f. Closing obligation 10,777.18 9,147.12
2. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
a. Current service cost 2,092.30 1.914.63
b. Interest cost 658.12 574.76
¢. Actuarial (gain) / losses (88.39) {1,335.39)
d. Expense recognised in the year 2,662.03 e, 1,154.01
bt SERL N
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b. Present value of obligation as at the year end 10,777.18 9,147.12
. Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 10,777.18 9,147.12
4. Actuarial Assumptions
a. Discount rate (p.a.) 7.48% 7.20%
Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
b. Mortality base Mortality {2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Uit table Ult table
¢. Turnover rate 3% - 10% 3% - 10%
d. Salary escalation rate 4% 4%
e. Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
For the year | For the year For the year For the year For the year
Description ended March | ended March | ended March | ended March | ended March
pti 31, 2023 31, 2022 a1, 2021 31, 2020 31, 2019
Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in '000 Rs. in 000 Rs. in "000 Rs. in '000
5. Experience
Adjustments
a. Present value of
obligation 10,777.18 9,147.12 8.584.61 7.568.15 5,106.69
b. Experience adjustment
on plan liabilities 198.10 {886.67) (630.02) 342.34 (506.23)

The estimate of future salary increases considering inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

ili. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which an employee renders the related service are recognized as liability at the present value of defined
benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Accerdingly, an amount of Rs. 4,191.54 thousand has been
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2022
R.s.3,948.10 thousand)

26. The Company is engaged in the business of financing the purchase of consumer durables, vehicles and
granting of personal loans in India, which in the context of Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”
constitutes a single reportable business segment.

27. As per Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures”, the disclosure of transactions with related parties
are given below:
List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationship:
{a) Related Party with whom control exists:

Holding Company AEON Financial Service Co., Ltd. Japan

{b) Other Relate‘d‘Parties with whom the Company has transactions:
RelPWISRDSICIAY AEON Credit Service (M) Berhad
AEON Credit Service Co., Ltd. Japan
AEON Bank Ltd.

Tomeo Sato (up to 315t August 2022)
Sanjaya Kumar Dash

K. P. Sunil

Keiichi Nambu (w. e. f. 18! July 2022)
Junichi Doi { w. e. f. 16™ August 2022)

Key Management Personnel

actions with related parties during the year and balance as at the year-end:

) Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries

NaturéBftransactions AEON Financial AEON Credit AEON Credit Management

W Service Co., Ltd. Service Co., Service (M) AEOS dBank Personnel
Japan Ltd. Japan Berhad .




Remuneration:
Daisuke Maeda i ) i ) )
) ) {-) -) (4,131.66)
- - - 4,431.36
Tomo Sato
) () -) ) (11,059.10)
Masaki Watanabe i ) ) ) i
() ) () ) (6,339.36)
- - - 6,948.05
Sanjaya Kumar Dash
) (-) ) ) {6.261.00)
- - - - 9,800.60
K. P. Sunil
(-} ) () Q) (8,084.97)
- = = 6,641.55
Keiichi Nambu
) ) ) ) )
& E - = 4,889.24
Junichi Doi
() (-} -) ) )
1,000,000.00 - - - -
Issue of Share Capital
) ) (-} (-} (-}
Purchase of software - - - - -
(incl. Capital work-in-
progress) ) ) ) ) )
Corporate guarantee 3,114.92 - - ' =
fees (2,179.45) 6 ) R O
Software Expenses ) - ) ) )
(3,322.85} (-) ) -) -)
Reimbursement of . 10,387.35 . 4,663.75 -
Salaries, allowances
and bonus -) (21,530.12) -} ) (-}
Training & Seminar 40.97 y - - -
expenses “) ) ) ) )
1,295.14 - - - -
Travelling Expenses
) ) () (-) )
157.29 - -
Professional Fees
- ) ) ) )
Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Ke
Nature of transactions AEON Financial AEON Credit | AECN Credit AEON Manageyment
Service CO.. Ltd. Service CO., Service (M) Bank Ltd Personnel
Japan Ltd. Japan Berhad ;
Balances as at March 31,
2023
Other Current Liabilities:
Payable to AEON Credit - - - -
Service (M) Berhad*® ) ) ) ) 8]
Payable to AEON Financial - - - -
ice Co,, Ltd. Japan* ) ) ¢) &) '8
- 2,450.15 -
) (680.30) ) -) )
y : m\ 1,963 .40
R )
() O 57 DA () 0O
ey 7
\=h ] b 4
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Trade Payables (including
payable for Property Plant
and Equipment):

Payable to AEON Credit
Service Systems (Philippines)
INC.

Other Current Assets:

Receivable from AEON -
Financial Service Co., Ltd.
Japan*

Receivable from AEQN Credit -
Service (M) Berhad*

(6.44)

* Represents reimbursement of satary and other expenses paid on behalf of the Company. During the year there
were ne amounts written off and written back from related parties.

Note: Figures in bracket relate to previous year.

28. (a) Disclosures in respect of assets taken on non-cancellable cperating lease under Accounting Standard (AS)

19 - "Leases”.

The Company has taken office premises, residential flats and software on lease. Terms of lease includes
operating term for renewal, increase in rent in future period and terms for cancellation where applicable. The
lease rental payments are included in “Rent including lease rentals” in Note no. 20.

The minimum lease payments to be made in future towards non-cancellable lease agreements are follows:

Estimated future minimum payments under As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
non-cancellable operating leases Rs. in 000 Rs. in '000
Not |ater than one year 31,5676.48 21,303.00
Later than one year and not later than five years 94,627.95 940.48
Later than five years 0.00 0.00
Total 126,204.43 22,243.48

29. Earnings per equity share:
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Rs. in '000 Rs. in '000
Loss after Tax A (81,348.56) {316,484.66)
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares B 420,000,000 320,000,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share A/B 0.19) {0.99)
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rupees) 10 10

. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax assets in respect of timing differences have not been recognized during the period because it is
not considered probable that future taxable profit will be available against which they can be realized.

31

Disclosure of details as required by Revised Para 19 of Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systematically

Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (updated as on February 17, 2020},
earlier Para 13 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007, earlier
Para 9BB of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1999

Liabilities Side:

Amount in Rs."000

Particulars Amount Outstanding Amount Overdue
March, 2023 March, 2022 | March, 2023 | March, 2022
1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of-interest accrued thereon but not paid:
a) Debentu S i
27N,
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b} Deferred Credits -
¢) Term Loans -

d) Inter-corporate [oans and borrowing -
&) Commercial Paper
f) Public Deposits
g) Other loans
Working capital demand loan

2,545,000.00

2) Break-up of (1){f} above (Qutstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):

a) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures . -
b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value of security -

c) Other public deposits -

1,577,000.00

Assets side: Amount in Rs. '000
Amount Outstanding
March, 2023 | March, 2022
3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
{other than those included in {4) below) : )
a) Secured 2,397,399 98 -
1,111,737.36 | 1,586,5904.24

b) Unsecured

4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing
activities

iy Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial Lease
(b) Operating Lease

i} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assels

ifiy Other loans counting towards asset financing activities:
(@) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b} Loans other than (i) above

5) Break-up of Investments

Current Investments:
1) Quoted:
(iy Shares:

(a) Equity
{b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)
2) Unquoted:

(i) Shares:

(a) Equity

{b) Preference
(i Debentures and Bonds
(ii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)
Long-Term Investments

1) Quoted:
(i} Shares:
(A) Fanity

;/E,t;l




2} Unquoted:

(i) Shares:

{a) Equity

(b} Preference
(il Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv} Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above

Amount in Rs.’000

Amount net of provisions
Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
March, 2023 | March, 2022 March, 2023 March, 2022 | March, 2023 | March, 2022
1) Related Parlies
(a) Subsidiaries - 2 - - . -
(b) Companies in the - - - - - -
same group
(¢} Other related Parties - - - - -
2) Other than related parties 2,354,051.03 - 1,091,635.31 1,586,594.24 | 3,445,686.34 1,586,594.24
TOTAL 2,354,051.03 - 1,091,635.31 | 1,586,594.24 | 3,445,686.34 | 1,586,594.24

7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Amount in Rs.’000

Market Value/Break up or fair Book Value
Particulars value or NAV (Net of Provisions)
March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2023 | March, 2022

1) Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries
(b} Companies in the same group
(c) Other related Parties

2) Other than related parties

TOTAL

8) Other Information

Amount in Rs.'000

2) Other than related parties

c) Assets acguired in satisfaction of debt

Particulars March, 2023 | March; 2022
a) Gross Non-Performing Assets
1) Related parties - -
2} Other than related parties 58,617.08 69,865.92
b) Net Non-Performing Asssts
1) Related parties 5 .
0.00 56,378.10




9) Disclosure requirements under Scale Based Regulation for NBFCs in regard to ‘Disclosure of Complaints’

Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Sr. No | Particulars [ Current Year | Previous Year
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 0 0
Number of complaints received during the year 74 31
Number of complaints disposed during the year 74 31
3.1 | Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 0 Y
4, Number of complaints pending at the end of the year
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
- Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC fromOffice 17 9
) of Ombudsman
5.4 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC byOffice 17 9
" |of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation 0 0
5.2 |/ mediation / advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards byOffice 0 0
| of Ombudsman against the NBFC
6.+ Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time{other 0 0
‘ than those appealed)
Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme,
2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for NBFC, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.
* |t shall only be applicable to NBFCS which are included under The Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers:

% increase /
Of 5, number
Grounds of complaints, (i.e., :‘ol::l:;;ng :;nT:lgirn:; de::‘l;e;zee'i-lz’fthe :lc:'lmm;:{n‘:; of comp]aints
complaints relating to) pending at the received complaints pending at pending
beginning of during the received over the | the end of the beyond 30
the year year previous year year days
1 2 3 4 5 6
Current Year
Ground — 1 — Rude Behaviour 0 19 27% 0 0
Ground — 2 — Product Not Received 0 10 233% 0 0
Ground — 3 — Payment done but not 0 9 125% 0 0
updated
Ground — 4 — Incorrect information given 0 7 133% 0 0
by the executive
Ground — 5 — Document Misused 0 5 150% 0 0
QOthers 0 24 500% 0 0
Total o 74 139% 0 0
Previous Year

Ground — 1 — Rude Behaviour 0 15 275% 0 0
Ground — 2 — Product Not Received 0 3 -40% 0 0
Ground — 3 — Payment done but not 0 4 33% 0 0
updated
Ground — 4 — Incorrect information given 0 3 100% 0 0
by the executive
Ground — 5 — Document Misused 0 2 -67% 0 0
Others 0 4 -69% 0 0
Total 0 3 0% 0 0




32. Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities (based on RBI guidelines)

For the year 2023 Amount in Rs."000
; Liabilities Assets

fantictiars Borrowings Advances Investment

1 day to 30/31 days (One month) 1,785,000.00 170,234.11 -
Over 1 month to 2 months 270,000.00 161,571.30 -
Qver 2 months up to 3 months 490,000.00 161,001.73 -
Over 3 months up to 6 months 0 477,724.29 -
Over 6 months to 1 year 0 884,875.92 -
Over 1 year to 3 years 0 1,605,684.95 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 4] 48,045.04 -
Qver 5 years 0 4] -
TOTAL 2,545,000.00 3.509,137.34 -
For the year 2022 Amount in Rs.’000
Particulars Liabilities Assets

Borrowings Advances Investment

1 day fo 30/31 days (One month) 1,422,000.00 69,906.84 -
Over 1 month to 2 months 155,000.00 73,612.47 -
Over 2 months up to 3 months - 76,678.63 -
Over 3 months up to 6 months - 229,662.55 -
Over 6 months to 1 year 415,115.83 -
Over 1 year to 3 years - 715,684.76 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 593317 -
Qver 5 years - - =
TOTAL 1,577,000.00 1,586,594.24 -

33. Estimated number of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
Rs. 18,591.33 thousand (2022: Rs. 8,972.129 thousand} where purchase orders are issued.

34. Trade Receivables Ageing

Amount in Rs."000

for is

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Particulars Less than6 | 6 months | 1-2 2.3 | More than
Total
months -1 year years | years | 3 years
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables 3,450,520.26 3,450,520.26
— considered good (1,630,216.14) - - - - | (1,530,216.14)
{iiy Undisputed Trade Receivables 58,617.08 58,617.08
— considered doubiful {69,865.92) - - - - (69,865.92)

(iii} Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

{(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered doubiful

Note: Figures in bracket relate to previous year

35. Trade Payable Ageing

Amount in Rs.'000

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Particulars

Less than 6

6 months -

1-2 2-3

More than

months 1 year years years 3 years Total
(i) MSME > s . 4 -
52.50 52.50
ii) Others - - - -
(ii) (89.69) (89.69)




36. Intangible Assets under development ageing as on 31% March 2023

Amount in Rs.'000

Particulars <{Year | 1-2Years | 2-3Years | >3 Years | Grand Total
CWIP-Salesforce Application - 850 850 - 1,700
CWIP-Ingenico API - - - 1,036 1,036
CWIP-Revolving Loan Interface 1,022 864 1,215 - 3,101
CWIP-App Membership App - - - 2,235 2,235
CWIP-App New Aecn Fast App - 22 2,180 - 2,202
CWIP-Customer and Merchant On-boarding - 793 793 - 1,686
CWIP-FinnOne Digital PL - - 762 - 762
CWIP-IVR integration 251 - - - 251
CWIP-Loyalty Management 910 1,820 4,551 1,820 9,102
CWIP-New Mobile App 981 - - - 981
CWIP-Revolving Loan 1,195 1,618 11,844 9,590 24,246
CWIP-Software 491 - - - 491
CWIP-Tally 16 - - - 16
Grand Total 4,866 5,967 22,195 14,680 47,708
Intangible Assets under development ageing as on 31 March 2022
Amount in Rs.'000
Particulars <1 Year 1-2Years | 2-3 Years | >3 Years | Grand Total
CWIP-Salesforce Application 850 850 - - 1,700
CWIP-Ingenico API - - 4,036 - 1,036
CWIP-Revolving Loan Interface 864 1,215 - - 2,079
CWIP-App Membership App = - 2,235 - 2,235
CWIP-App New Acon Fast App 22 2,180 - - 2,202
CWIP-Customer and Merchant On-boarding 793 793 - = 1,586
CWIP-FinnOne Digital PL - 762 - - 762
CWIP-Loyalty Management 1,820 4,551 1,820 - 8,191
CWIP-Cffice Equipment 1,145 35 - - 1,179
CWIP-Revolving Loan 1,618 11,844 9,590 - 23,052
7112 22,230 14,680 44,022
37. Major Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator | 2022-23 | 2021-22 | % Variance | Reason for variance
(a) Current ratio | Current Assets CHrient 0.78 0.62 27% Due to increase in current portion of
Liabilities Receivables under financing activity
{b) Debt-equity | ro1a1 pebt shareholder’s |, g 6.34 -66% lﬁfffﬁiréiﬁf 'thﬁ?{: ;Ieudeuf:?ols:r}or
ratio Equity the period
{ctjvl::re:; :n::t:ii;e 'I:-Z:rrr;zgts :ev:ilj:{e Debt Service 3% 2% 261% ::c) ::essim proved due to reducticn in
Li]u?;t‘:;;:" tNa;:r—Oﬁ:;grt:;ce QESFZEZIder’s 4% | -254% | 15442% ?eitc‘:;"g;zef;"r i::r:ec:rpital and
Dividend {if any} Equity
Earnings before Capital Due Fo reduct.ion in Ios?es for the year
inaresPandliaxes Employed 1% -14% 105% faC;:j::r:l:rease in borrowings & share




38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

The Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR as per Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013.

a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b} The Company has not received any funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from
any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The disclosure on the following matters required under Schedule Ill as amended not being relevant or
applicable in case of the Company, same are not covered:

a. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the period.
b. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

¢. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

d. The Company has not entered any scheme of arrangement.

e. No satisfaction of charges are pending to be filed with ROC beyond the statutory period.

f.  There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

g. The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held
in the name of the company during the financial period ended March 31, 2023.

h. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the period.

i.  There are no core investment company (CIC) in the group.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act
read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the period ended March 31, 2023.

The Company have not undertaken any transactions with any company whose name is struck off under
section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 in the period ended March 31,
2023.

Previous year's figures have been regroupedireclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current
year’s classification/disclosure.

For TR Chadha & CoLLP For AEON Credit Service India Private Limited

Chartered Accountanfs
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Keiichi Nambu Sanjaya Kumar Dash  K.P Ql31nil
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